
 Our Mission is to Provide Quality Public Services 
in a Fiscally Responsible Manner While 
Preserving the City’s Open Space Character 

NOTICE OF MEETING  
City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, December 03, 2013 7:00 P.M. 
City of Lake Elmo | 3800 Laverne Avenue North 

AGENDA 
A. Call to Order 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Roll Call  
D. Order of Business 
E. Approval of Agenda 
F. Accept Minutes 

1. Accept November 19, 2013 Special City Council Meeting Minutes 

G. Council Reports  
• Mayor 
• Council 

H. Public Comments/Inquiries 
I. Speak Your Peace –  
J. Presentations 

• Stillwater School Dist. Superintendant Corey Lunn - Northeast Metro Intermediate School 
District 916 

K. 2014 Proposed Tax Levy and General Fund Budget Taxes - Public Hearing 
2. Adopt 2014 Budget and Tax Levy; Resolution 2013-99 

L. Consent Agenda 
3. Approve Payment of Disbursements and Payroll 
4. SCADA System Upgrade 
5. Approve 2014 Liquor Licenses Renewals 
6. Authorize Certification to the Washington County Auditor for Unpaid Water Utility Bills; 

Resolution 2013-100 

M. Regular Agenda 
7. Lake Elmo Avenue Trunk Watermain Imp. – Public Hearing; Authorize Preparation of 

Plans & Specifications; Resolution 2013-101 
8. Inwood Booster Station & Trunk Watermain Improvements – Accept Feasibility Report; 

Call Improvement Hearing; Resolution 2013-102 
9. Conditional Use Permit and Eagle Point Business Park PUD Amendment - 

33.029.21.42.0013; Resolution 2013-103 
10. Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Zoning Map Amendment - 10689 60th Street 

North; Resolution 2013-104 
11. Driveway Ordinance; Ordinance 08-096, Resolution 2013-105 
12. RAD-ALT Moratorium; Ordinance 08-097 

7:00 

7:10 

7:15 

9:15
   

8:50 

7:30 

8:00 



13. 2014 Plan of Work 
14. Diedrich-Rieder Easement Vacation  

a. Public Utility Easement and Agreement Public Hearing; Resolution 2013-106A 
b. Temporary Construction Easement and Agreement Public Hearing; Resolution 

2013-106B 
N. Staff Reports and Announcements 

• City Administrator 
• City Attorney 
• Planning Director  
• City Engineer 
• Finance Director 
• City Clerk 

O. Adjourn 
 

****Item times are estimates and subject to change**** 

9:40
   







































































































































































 

 
 

Who are we? 
 

Northeast Metro 916 is one of only three intermediate school districts in Minnesota; we benefit our 
students and member school districts in a number of ways: 

• By providing innovative and quality educational options that are limited or not available in our 
member districts. 
• Through stable, expert staff that provides high quality and consistent learning support to our 
students and their families. 
• By creating and delivering programs and services in partnership with our 11 member districts. 
• Through shared administrative services and educational options that yield a high return on 
investment through economies of scale. 

 

At Northeast Metro 916, we directly teach 4,000 students each year through shared programs that 
include Career and Technical education, Special Education services, Valley Crossing Community 
School, and our Area Learning Centers. We proudly partner with our 11 northeast metro area 
member school districts as well as supporting a number of other participating, non-member school 
districts.  Our member school districts include Columbia Heights, Spring Lake Park, Mounds View, 
Roseville, Centennial, North St. Paul/Maplewood/Oakdale, White Bear Lake, Mahtomedi, 
Stillwater, and South Washington County and Forest Lake. 

 

Why are we here? 
 

We are here because we would like to purchase the 19 acre parcel of land located in the Eagle 
Point Business Park in Lake Elmo that is owned by United Properties in order to build a new K-8 
school for our district. 

 

What is the need / why now? 
 

In the last five years our school district has seen a tremendous increase in the number of referrals for 
children at the elementary and middle school level, particularly children with autism.  The chart 
below shows the increase in students referred to us just from school districts located in the southeast 
region of our school district.  (South Washington County, Stillwater, North St. Paul/Maplewood 
/Oakdale, Mahtomedi, Forest Lake, Roseville, White Bear Lake, Inver Grove Heights, So St Paul, 
West St Paul, St. Paul and Hudson WI) 

 
 



Historically we have only had six classrooms of elementary-aged students in our programs.  This 
has now grown to sixteen classrooms and in 2012, for the first time in our history, we had to 
temporarily close several programs to non-member school districts.  To create the additional 
classrooms, we have had to convert space in a middle school building to accommodate 
elementary-aged students and create small programs in temporary space provided by our member 
district schools. These solutions are not available to us on a long-term basis, and are not efficient 
or economical. For example, many highly specialized staff are spending time travelling between 
students at different sites, rather than working with students in the classroom.  We are also 
spending scarce resources to modify rooms for our students in temporary locations that will have 
to be returned to our member districts in the next two to three years. 

 
Our current programs are centrally located in our school district.  (See attached map) This has 
worked in the past because the largest part of our student population (secondary students) could 
handle an extended bus ride.  However, the long travel times to our centralized locations are an 
added burden for our increasing elementary population.  As an example, some students are 
currently being transported from Fridley to Woodbury. 

 
To try and address the above issues, Northeast Metro 916 has been working with our member 
district superintendents, special education directors and school boards on long-term facility 
planning for our students.  The Northeast Metro 916 school board has approved a plan to 
regionalize our K-8 facilities with the long-term goal of creating a K-8 facility in both the 
northwest and southeast regions of our school district.  They have officially approved 
construction of the first new facility in Blaine to serve the northwest region.  This school will be 
opening in the Fall of 2014.  This facility was the first priority because we currently do not have 
any presence in this area and we are losing five of our temporary classrooms to a member district 
in that area who needs the space to accommodate their own growth.   
 
The land we are proposing to purchase in Lake Elmo would be the next priority and serve as the 
K-8 facility for the southeast region. 

 

 
 

What is the planned size of the school and what kind of jobs does it represent? 
 
The building we are planning would be approximately 70,000 square feet in size and serve up to 
150 students.   We are working with BWBR as the building architect, Hallberg Engineering as 
mechanical and electrical engineers, and Kraus Anderson to provide construction management 
for this building. 

 
This educational program will serve level four disabled students.  These students cannot be 
served in a regular K-12 school building and typically require ancillary services as part of their 
school day.  Therefore, we have very high staff to student ratios in our school. 

 
Based on our current enrollment, we anticipate opening the building with 80 students and 60 
staff members.  The table below outlines the starting and maximum capacity levels of jobs at this 
new school. 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
How much traffic would this school generate? 

 
Students in our programs are all transported by their home district transportation departments. 
Parents do not drop off and pick up their children because the school is typically not in their 
neighborhood.  Therefore, the car traffic that is generated is really generated by our employees. 

 
Bus traffic will take the form of perhaps 20 or so busses per day and they will be any range of 
sizes.  There will also be many districts that send their students in vans to our programs.  This 
number might also be close to 20.   Start times have not yet been set but our programs typically 
run from 8 to 2 or 9:15 to 3:15 each day and transportation vehicles start arriving a half hour 
ahead of that time. 

 
There is very little activity in the school building during the evening or on weekends.   Again, 
because our students are coming from multiple districts across the metro, and they are 
transported by their home school district, it is not feasible to have these types of events in our 
programs.  There will however be a few evening conferences and student programs during the 
school day that are open for families to attend. 



120

35W

35W

35W

35E

156

61

95

47

55

35

95

62

65

9494

94

110

52

13

35E

95

244

394

77
10

252

610

35E

5

36

494

96

61

61

280

55
61

55

694

694

3

494

10

97

51

149

5

SOUTH CAMPUS

WELS-
NORTH

TRANSITION
/ BELLAIRE

ONEKA ELEM

OTTER LAKE ELEM

JOHN GLENN MS
CAPITOL VIEW
/ WELS-SOUTH

VALLEY
CROSSING ELEM

WILLOW ELEM

Northeast Metro 916
Intermediate School District
CURRENT

CURRENT

Schools

NEM 916 Boundary
MEMBER DISTRICTS

CENTENNIAL

COLUMBIA HEIGHTS

MAHTOMEDI

MOUNDS VIEW

N ST PAUL MAPLEWOOD OAKDALE

ROSEVILLE

SOUTH WASHINGTON COUNTY

SPRING LAKE PARK

STILLWATER

WHITE BEAR LAKE
0 1 2 3 40.5

Miles



Kindergarten - 8th Grade Facility 

PROGRAM OVERVIEW 

Specialized programming will provide special education and related services to students  
kindergarten through grade 8 with Autism (ASD) and Emotional or Behavioral Disorders (EBD). 
Evidence-based instructional practices will be implemented in a highly supportive environment that 
will maintain a low student/teacher ratio to address the unique, educational and therapeutic needs 
of each child. Classroom teachers and related service providers will work together in a coordinated 
manner to maximize the educational benefits for students.  
 
INSTRUCTION 

Students will be carefully grouped each year for optimal learning in small classrooms. The program 
will focus on academic instruction with necessary accommodations, modifications and adaptations to 
the curriculum to ensure that students are able to reach their potential. Fully certified teachers -- 
with the assistance of highly trained educational assistants – will provide academic instruction  
utilizing a multi-sensory approach in individual and small group settings. 
 
Technology will be fully integrated into the instruction. Each classroom will be equipped with  
technology that will allow for seamless student access through a large variety of motivational and 
instructional educational software.  
 
RELATED SERVICES 

Related services identified on each student's Individualized Education Plan (IEP) are delivered in 
pull out, embedded and consultative formats. These services include, but are not limited to,  
the following: 
 

 Speech/Language Pathology 

 Mental Health Services 

 Occupational Therapy 

 Physical Therapy 

 School Health Services 

 Audiology 

 

Related services are interwoven with the instructional program and delivered within the classroom 
setting whenever possible. An interdisciplinary team approach will ensure regular and cohesive 
communication and co-planning amongst teachers, related services and therapeutic staff. 

Northeast Metro 916  Dan Naidicz 
Special Education Department Director of Special Education 
2540 County Road F East 651-415-5658 
White Bear Lake, MN 55110 Daniel.Naidicz@nemetro.k12.mn.us 



3 2 1 

How We Teach in a Compassionate School 

Empowerment Positive 
Regard 

High 
Expectations 

Informed 
Decisions 

Guided 
Opportunities Relationships 

Three Areas of Teaching in a Compassionate School 

Safety 
Connection 

Assurance of Well-Being 
Emotional + Behavioral 

Self-Regulation 
Competencies of Personal 

Agency, Social Skills + 
Academics 

Compassionate School Philosophy:  
 
Staff intentionally respond to challenges faced by students and families by offering support and removing barriers to learning. They seek to 
understand, support and create a healing learning environment. The model supports students to build caring relationships with adults and 
peers, self-regulate their emotions and behaviors, achieve in academic and non-academic areas, and be physically and emotionally healthy. 

Connecting students to their world through a compassionate and creative learning environment. 
Karner Blue Education Center 

Roots to grow. Wings to fly. 









































Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping,
Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

Data Scource: Washington County, MN
11-20-2013

Location Map: 10689 60th Street N.

K0 500 1,000250 Feet10689 60th Street N.

Discover Crossing

Rockpoint 
Church

1"=500'

456717

Lake Elmo Ave. N.



Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping,
Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

Site Aerial
10689 60th St.

10689 60th Street N.
0 100 20050 Feet

1"=100'



Sources: Washington County & Metro GIS
10-8-2013

5

Planned Land Use
Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan 2030

Map 3-3

Village Open Space Overlay
Municipal Boundary

White hatching denotes possible mixed use areas

Planned Land Uses

Commercial
Limited Business
Business Park

Residential Estate
Rural Area Development
Rural Area Development Alt

Rural Single Family

Public/Park

Urban High Density
Urban Low Density
Urban Medium Density

Village Mixed Use
Village Urban Low Density
Village Urban Medium Density



Sources: Washington County & Metro GIS
11-21-2013

5

Planned Land Use - Amendment
Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan 2030

Map 3-3

Planned Land Uses

Residential Estate
Rural Area Development
Rural Area Development Alt

Rural Single Family

Public/Park

Urban High Density
Urban Medium Density

Commercial
Limited Business
Business Park

Urban Low Density

Village Mixed Use
Village Urban Low Density
Village Urban Medium Density

Municipal Boundary
White hatching denotes possible mixed use areas

Discover  
Crossing

Rockpoint
Church

TH-36

Lake Elmo Ave

Keats Ave

50th St

Proposed Amendment: RAD to C

Kirkwood Ave





Lake Elmo

Lake Jane

Eagle Point Lake

Lake DeMontreville

Lake Olson

Long Lake

Sunfish Lake

Horseshoe Lake

Goose Lake

Downs Lake

Rose Lake

Clear Lake

Arm
strong Lake

Lo
ng

 La
ke

Marksgraf Lake

Mud Lake

60TH S T N

10TH S T N

STILLWAT ER BLV D N

50TH S T N

IN
W

OO
D 

AV
E 

N

LA
KE

 E
LM

O 
AV

E 
N

34TH S T N

KE
AT

S 
AV

E 
N

20TH S T N

LAKE  JANE  TRL N

15TH S T N

HUDS ON BLV D

30TH S T N

JA
M

AC
A 

AV
E 

N

MA
NN

IN
G 

AV
E 

N

27TH S T N

53RD ST N

55TH S T N

JANE  RD N

47TH S T N
DE

M
ON

TR
EV

IL
LE

 T
RL

 N

57TH ST N

59TH S T N

31S T ST N

51S T ST S

LE
GI

O
N 

AV
E 

N

43RD ST N

HIDDE N BAY TRL N

42ND ST N

KI
M

BR
O 

AV
E 

N

39TH S T N

38TH S T N

33RD ST N

OL
SO

N 
LA

KE
 T

RL
 N

24TH ST N

26TH S T N

HILL T RL N

IV
Y 

AV
E 

N

LI
ND

EN
 T

RL
 N

32ND ST N

58
TH

 S
T N

CIM ARRON

LI
LY

 A
VE

 N

JULE P AV E N

IV
OR

Y 
AV

E 
N

HILLTOP  AVE  N

45TH S T N

STILLWAT ER LN N

IRIS AVE  N

21S T ST N

ISLE  AVE  N

HI
G

HL
AN

DS
 T

RL
 N

9TH S T N

12TH S T N

LA
VE

RN
E 

AV
E  

N

JASMINE  AVE  N

KL
ON

DI
KE

 A
VE

 N

JE
W

EL
 A

VE
 N

44TH S T N

56TH S T N

KE
LV

IN
 A

VE
 N

LE
GI

O
N 

L N
 N

LI
ND

EN
 A

VE
 N

35TH S T N

JA
MACA B

LV
D N

MA
NN

IN
G 

TR
L N

37TH S T N

36TH S T N

JA
M

LE
Y 

AV
E  

N

IM
PE

RI
AL

 A
VE

 N

DE ER P OND TRL N

JANE  CT  N

22ND ST N

JO
NQ

UI
L A

VE
 N

UP PE R 33RD S T N

KI
RK

W
OO

D 
AV

E 
N

TAPESTRY  RD

28TH S T N

25TH S T N

ID
EA

L A
VE

 N

16TH S T N

KELVIN CT N

14TH S T N

MARQUE SS  TRL N

3RD S TREE T PL N

HYTRAIL AVE  N

40TH ST N

JEROME AVE N

LI
SB

ON
 C

T 
N

10
 S

T  
LN

 N

LI
LA

C 
LN

 N

IRO NW OOD TRL N

IV Y CT N

EA
GL

E 
PO

IN
T  

BL
VD

LISBON AVE N

LA
YT

O
N 

AV
E 

N

JA
NE

 CI
R 

NJA
SP

ER
 A

VE
 N

JAM ACA CT N

LEEWARD AVE  N

BIRCHBARK TRL N

JA
CK

 P
IN

E  
TR

L 
N

LUCILE  LN

JA
NE

RO
 A

VE
 N

JULE P CT N

IS
LE

 C
T  

N

IR
IS

H 
AV

E 
N

15  ST  CT  N

IRISH CT  N

LAMPERT AVE N

LILAC P L N

IR
VI

N 
CT

 N

HIG HL ANDS  CT N

MARQUE SS  LN N

TAP ES TRY  BEND

WINDBRE AK TRL N

IRV
IN 

CI
R 

N

57
TH

 S
T 

CI
R 

N

LI
ND

EN
 T

RL

WHISTL ING  VAL LEY  TRL

LILAC WAY N

IV ORY CT

IN
NS

DA
LE

 A
VE

 N
LANG LY  CT  N

11TH ST N

44TH S T LN N

57
TH

 S
T 

CO
VE

22ND CT N

27TH STREET CT N

LA
YT

O
N 

CT
 N

10TH STREET CT N

IR
W

IN
 A

VE
 N

LA
VE

RN
E 

CT
 N

TAP ES TRY  GROV E

KE ATS  AV E N TO WB I94

EA
GL

E  
PO

INT
 CI

R

MANNING AV E N TO WB I94

59TH S TREE T CT N

HILL T RAIL CT N

LEGIO N L N CIR N

20
TH

 S
TR

EE
T 

CT
 N

HUDS ON BLV D

LA
KE

 E
LM

O 
AV

E  
N

JA
M

AC
A 

AV
E 

N

59TH S T N

37TH S T N

LA
YT

O
N 

AV
E 

N

60TH S T N60TH S T N

35TH S T N

IN
NS

DA
LE

 A
VE

 N

34TH S T N

HI
G

HL
AN

DS
 T

RL
 N

INNSDALE AVE N

50TH S T N

60TH S T N

IS
LE

 A
VE

 N

28TH S T N

15TH S T N

LE
GI

O
N 

AV
E 

N

IV Y AVE N

60TH S T N

IVY AVE N

LILY AVE  N

57TH ST N

47TH S T N

31S T ST N

21S T ST N

KE
AT

S 
AV

E 
N

32ND ST N

LI
LY

 A
VE

 N

ID
EA

L A
VE

 N

MA
NN

IN
G 

AV
E 

N
MA

NN
IN

G 
AV

E 
N

10TH S T N

60TH S T N

ST
ILL

WA
T E

R 
BL

VD
 N

JU
LE

P 
AV

E 
N

53RD ST N

55TH S T N

21ST ST N

39TH S T N

KE
LV

IN
 AV

E  
N

IN
W

OO
D 

AV
E 

N

35TH S T N

E
Zoning Districts

OP
R2-PUD
LDR
MDRRS

RE
RR
A HDR

C
GB

LC
LC-PUD

RT
PFBP

CC

VMX

Legend
General

Lakes
Lake Elmo Boundary
Shoreland District Boundary

Village Area
General

Lakes
Village Area Watershed Districts

Browns Creek

Valley Branch
South Washington

Lake Elmo Zoning Map

Data Disclaimer:
This map is not a boundary
survey and is not intended
to be used as such.  The
City of Lake Elmo assumes
no liability for the
completeness of this map
or responsibility for any
associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages
that may result from its use
or misuse.
Map Updated May 2013

Lake Elmo Planning Department
May 21, 2013







    PAGE 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM   

 
 
 
Date:  November 19, 2013 
 

 
To:  Nick Johnson, City Planner   Re:  10689 60th Street North 
Cc:  Kyle Klatt, Community Development Director    Comp Plan and Zoning Map Amendment 
       
From:  Jack Griffin, P.E., City Engineer     
 

 
An engineering review has been completed for the above Comprehensive Plan and Zoning map amendment for 
10689 60th Street North. The applicant has requested an amendment to the comprehensive plan and zoning map 
in order to change the  land use designation and zoning for the subject property from residential to commercial. 
The applicant intends is to use the property to operate a landscaping business. 
 

 
STATUS/FINDINGS:    An  expanded  access  to  TH  36  should  not  be  allowed  due  to  safety  concerns  and  access 
management issues existing along the corridor. Any consideration given to allow the expanded use of the subject 
property should be done only after the applicant has demonstrated an acceptable alternative access for the use of 
the  property.  Further  consideration  should  be  given  to  requiring  the  applicant  to  connect  to  city water  and 
demonstrate a viable long term plan for wastewater management.  
 

 

 The property currently accesses TH 36 directly. As part of MnDOT’s TH 36 Corridor Plan, this access point 
will need to be eliminated at some time in the future, and an alternative access will need to be provided.  
 
Extensive  transportation  planning work  has  been  completed  over  the  years  by  the  City, MnDOT  and 
Washington County to address safe access to State Highway 36. MnDOT has designated TH 36 as an Inter‐
Regional Corridor. The City of Lake Elmo  is  in process of completing a State Highway 36 South Frontage 
Road  Study  to  identify  a  long  range  access management  plan  and  to  identify  an  east‐west  collector 
roadway to facilitate this access for the community. 
 

 The  property  resides  outside  of  the  city’s  planned  sewer  service  areas.  Sanitary  sewer  service  is  not 
available  to  this  property  and  there  are  no  future  plans  to  provide  this  property with  sanitary  sewer 
service in the future.  
 

 City water service is available in the vicinity of the property from the northern trunk watermain extension 
project. The property is not currently connected to city water. 
 

FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc. 
Cara Geheren, P.E.   651.300.4261

Jack Griffin, P.E.                651.300.4264 

Ryan Stempski, P.E.  651.300.4267 

Chad Isakson, P.E.  651.300.4285 



From: Sherman, Tod (DOT)
To: Nick Johnson
Cc: Josephson, Adam (DOT)
Subject: Access off of TH 36
Date: Friday, November 22, 2013 12:03:30 PM

Nick:

Thank You for providing MnDOT information concerning the proposed zoning change for the property adjacent to
 Hwy 36.  As you are aware,  since there is no other reasonably convenient and suitable alternative access available
 for the property, MnDOT would likely continue to allow the property direct access onto Hwy 36.  Hwy 36 is
 functionally classified as a principal arterial and therefore emphasizes mobility rather than private property access. 
 Property access should be provided off local public streets wherever possible.  Therefore, until access to this
 property can be relocated to the local roadway network, MnDOT recommends minimizing the amount of traffic
 using adjacent private driveways.

At a minimum, a MnDOT access permit will be needed for this property due to the change in use.  With the permit
 review for the change in use, MnDOT will need to review plans (site plan, grading plan, landscaping plan, etc.) to
 insure safe access and to identify any additional permits that may be needed (such as a drainage permit).

Thank You,  Tod

Tod Sherman, Planning Supervisor

Mn/DOT Metro District

1500 W. County Road B-2

Roseville, MN 55113

(651) 234-7794

tod.sherman@state.mn.us

mailto:Tod.Sherman@state.mn.us
mailto:NJohnson@lakeelmo.org
mailto:adam.josephson@state.mn.us


Understanding Spot Zoning

http://plannersweb.com/2013/11/understanding-spot-zoning-2/?print=true[11/22/2013 10:21:37 AM]

Issues in Land Use Law & Zoning

Understanding Spot Zoning

by Daniel Shapiro, Esq.

November 7th, 2013

Editor’s note: We’re pleased to continue offering articles providing an overview of some of the key zoning and land use law
 issues planners and planning commissioners face. As with all such articles, we encourage you to consult with your
 municipal attorney as laws and legal practice vary from state to state.

Occasionally, planning boards or commissions are faced with a petitioner’s request to re-zone property only to be
 challenged with an objector’s claim that doing so would constitute illegal spot zoning. The plan commission often has a
 quandary; approve the development and risk making an improper, if not illegal decision, or deny the development
 which would have financially improved the community. To better assist with this difficult decision, it is beneficial for
 the commission to understand exactly what “spot zoning” is.

What Constitutes Spot Zoning

The “classic” definition of spot zoning is “the process of singling out a small parcel of land for a
 use classification totally different from that of the surrounding area for the benefit of
 the owner of such property and to the detriment of other owners.“ 1

Spot zoning is, in fact, often thought of as the very antithesis of plan zoning. 2 When considering spot zoning, courts
 will generally determine whether the zoning relates to the compatibility of the zoning of surrounding uses. Other factors
 may include; the characteristics of the land, the size of the parcel, and the degree of the “public benefit.” Perhaps the
 most important criteria in determining spot zoning is the extent to which the disputed zoning is consistent with the
 municipality’s comprehensive plan.

Counties and municipalities both adopt comprehensive plans for the purposes of stating their long term planning objectives,
 and addressing the needs of the community in one comprehensive document that can be referred to in making many zoning
 decisions over time.

Comprehensive plans also typically map out the types (and locations) of future land use patterns which the municipality (or
 county) would like see — again, these provide guidance for changes in the zoning ordinance and zoning district maps.

The key point: rezonings should be consistent with the policies and land use designations set out in the comprehensive plan.

Importantly, each claim of spot zoning must be considered based
 upon its own factual scenario. Indeed, some courts engage in a

http://plannersweb.com/search/by+Daniel+Shapiro%2C+Esq.


Understanding Spot Zoning

http://plannersweb.com/2013/11/understanding-spot-zoning-2/?print=true[11/22/2013 10:21:37 AM]

illustration by Paul Hoffman for PlannersWeb

illustration by Paul Hoffman for
 PlannersWeb

 cost/benefit analysis to determine whether the challenged zoning is
 spot zoning.

For instance, in Griswold v. Homer, 3 the Alaska Supreme Court
 found spot zoning to exist by considering a cost benefit analysis, as
 well as the size of the parcel in question and the rezoning in
 relationship to the comprehensive plan. Critically, it found that the
 spot zoning was absent because, among other things, the underlying
 ordinance resulted in genuine benefits to the City of Homer as a
 whole, and not just to the particular land owner.

Although courts often find spot zoning where the challenged zone is
 surrounded by other incompatible zones, spot zoning is less likely to occur when the rezoning has “slopped over” by
 the extension of the perimeter of an existing zone to include the rezoned area.

Additionally, improper spot zoning is less likely when the disputed area is
 characterized by mixed uses or transitional areas. In other words, spot zoning is
 more frequently found in residential than in commercial neighborhoods.

When holding that spot zoning is invalid, some courts will couch their ruling in in
 terms of substantive due process — in other words, that the rezoning was not
 “reasonably related” to a legitimate state interest. Other courts will frame a ruling
 upon equal protection principles. 4

Regardless, when courts declare such rezoning invalid they must base their
 declaration on: (1) the lack of connection of the rezoning to a legitimate power or
 purpose; (2) the lack of the rezoning’s conformity to the comprehensive plan; or
 (3) the rezoning’s representing an unreasonable inequality in the treatment of
 similarly situated lands. See, e.g., Hanna v. City of Chicago 5 (spot zoning occurs
 when a relatively small parcel or area is rezoned to a classification out of harmony
 with the comprehensive plan).

Rebutting Spot Zoning

Spot zoning, however, may be rebutted when the challenged zoning is found to be
 consistent with a municipality’s recent zoning trends in the area, not just with the
 present surrounding uses. 6 To illustrate the importance that each factual scenario

 must be closely addressed, rather than merely labeled, it should be noted that one Illinois court found that the rezoning
 of small parcels inconsistent with the zoning of surrounding areas is not necessarily unlawful. 7 The size of a parcel is
 just one factor to be considered in determining spot zoning.

A claim of spot zoning may also lack merit, for instance, when the zoning or planning regulations consider the
 boundaries of the property in dispute to contain a line of demarcation between zoning districts which would
 appropriately separate one zoning district from another. 8

http://plannersweb.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/11/zoning-industrial.jpg
http://plannersweb.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/11/zoning-residential.jpg


Understanding Spot Zoning

http://plannersweb.com/2013/11/understanding-spot-zoning-2/?print=true[11/22/2013 10:21:37 AM]

Most importantly though, if the zoning is enacted in accordance with a comprehensive plan, it is typically not “spot
 zoning.” 9

What’s a Planning Commission to Do?

When considering zoning map amendments, the planning commission or board must not only determine whether the
 petitioner has satisfactorily responded to the traditional standards in support of his or her application, but it should also
 closely scrutinize whether a potential exists for spot zoning. In doing so, the commission should look at the comprehensive
 plan and the surrounding uses to the property at issue.

While the commission is not qualified to make legal determinations of spot zoning, it is nonetheless the gatekeeper of
 identifying that such an issue may exist. It is therefore appropriate for the commission to defer its decision and consult with
 its municipal attorney before voting to approve the rezoning and referring it to the governing body for adoption.

Summing Up:

Spot zoning must be addressed upon the facts and circumstances of each case. As such, when faced with allegations of
 spot zoning, the courts will closely look at factors such as the size of the parcel; the anticipated public benefit; the
 consistency with the community’s comprehensive plan; and the consistency with surrounding zoning, and uses, to make
 a determination of the validity of the rezoning.

Dan Shapiro is a partner with the law firm of Robbins, Salomon and Patt, Ltd in Chicago,
 Illinois. He practices in the areas of land use, zoning, governmental relations, municipal law,
 and civil litigation.

Dan represents a wide variety of private developers as well as governmental entities and advises
 his clients closely on issues of concern. As part of his practice, he has successfully presented
 legislative and administrative matters before plan commissions, zoning boards, and other
 village, city, and county bodies.

Dan also is an adjunct professor teaching land use at Kent Law School in Chicago, and is the Chairman of the Village of
 Deerfield (Illinois) Plan Commission.

Notes:

1. Anderson’s American Law of Zoning, 4th Edition, § 5.12 (1995). 
2. See, e.g., Jones v Zoning Board of Adjustment of Township of Long Beach, 32 N.J. Super 397,108 A.2d 498, 502

 (1954). 
3. Griswold v. Homer, 926 P.2d 1015 (Alaska 1996) 
4. See, e.g., Rando v. Town of N. Attleborough, 692 N.E.2d 544 (Mass. App. Ct. 1998). 
5. Hanna v. City of Chicago 771 N.E.2d 13 (2002) 
6. See e.g., 1350 Lakeshore Associates v. Casalino, 352 Ill.App.3d 1027, 816 N.E.2d 675 (1st Dist. 2004). 
7. See, e.g., Goffinet v. County of Christian, 65 Ill.2d 40 357 N.E.2d 442 (1976). 

http://plannersweb.com/wp-content/uploads/2013/11/Dan-Shapiro-photo2.jpg


Understanding Spot Zoning

http://plannersweb.com/2013/11/understanding-spot-zoning-2/?print=true[11/22/2013 10:21:37 AM]

8. See, e.g., LaSalle National Bank v. City of Highland Park, 344 Ill.App.3d 259, 799 N.E.2d 781 (2nd Dist. 2003).
 

9. See, e.g., Jones v. Zoning Board of Adjustment of Township of Long Beach, 32 N.J. Super. 397, 108 A.2d 498,
 502 (1954). 


Tags:Land Use Law, Zoning & Land Use Regulations

Printed From: http://plannersweb.com/2013/11/understanding-spot-zoning-2/

http://plannersweb.com/topics/planning-topics/land-use-law/
http://plannersweb.com/topics/basic-tools/zoning-land-use-regulations/













































































	Item 10 - CC Item #10.pdf
	CC CPA and Rezoning Request; 12-3-13
	Res 2013-104 CPA and Rezoning Request 12-3-13
	FINDINGS

	Item 5B
	PC Report Landscape Business CPA 11-25-13
	Application Form
	Location Map
	Site Aerial
	Planned Land Use 10-8-13
	CPA Map
	Map 3-1
	Lake Elmo Zoning Map 5-21-13 reduced
	SKMBT_C25313112213010
	2013-11-19 Land Use-Zoning 10689 60th Street
	Access off of TH 36
	Understanding Spot Zoning
	plannersweb.com
	Understanding Spot Zoning




	Item 9 - Lake Elmo presentation packet (from SD).pdf
	Northeast Metro 916 intro document
	916 Blaine Site Fit plan 8-30
	Facility Overview
	KB_Philosophy_Parents.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2


	CCA 12-03-13.pdf
	A. Call to Order
	B. Pledge of Allegiance
	C. Roll Call
	D. Order of Business
	E. Approval of Agenda
	F. Accept Minutes
	1. Accept November 19, 2013 Special City Council Meeting Minutes

	G. Council Reports
	H. Public Comments/Inquiries
	I. Speak Your Peace –
	J. Presentations
	K. 2014 Proposed Tax Levy and General Fund Budget Taxes - Public Hearing
	1.
	2. Adopt 2014 Budget and Tax Levy; Resolution 2013-99
	3.
	4.
	5.
	6.
	7.
	8.
	9.
	10.
	11.

	L. Consent Agenda
	1.
	2.
	3. Approve Payment of Disbursements and Payroll
	4. SCADA System Upgrade
	5. Approve 2014 Liquor Licenses Renewals
	6. Authorize Certification to the Washington County Auditor for Unpaid Water Utility Bills; Resolution 2013-100

	M. Regular Agenda
	1.
	2.
	3.
	4.
	5.
	6.
	7. Lake Elmo Avenue Trunk Watermain Imp. – Public Hearing; Authorize Preparation of Plans & Specifications; Resolution 2013-101
	8. Inwood Booster Station & Trunk Watermain Improvements – Accept Feasibility Report; Call Improvement Hearing; Resolution 2013-102
	9. Conditional Use Permit and Eagle Point Business Park PUD Amendment - 33.029.21.42.0013; Resolution 2013-103
	10. Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Zoning Map Amendment - 10689 60th Street North; Resolution 2013-104
	11. Driveway Ordinance; Ordinance 08-096, Resolution 2013-105
	12. RAD-ALT Moratorium; Ordinance 08-097
	13. 2014 Plan of Work
	14. Diedrich-Rieder Easement Vacation
	a. Public Utility Easement and Agreement Public Hearing; Resolution 2013-106A
	b. Temporary Construction Easement and Agreement Public Hearing; Resolution 2013-106B

	15.
	16.
	17.
	18.
	19.
	20.
	21.
	22.
	23.
	24.
	25.

	N. Staff Reports and Announcements
	1.
	2.
	3.
	4.
	5.
	6.
	7.
	8.
	9.
	10.
	11.
	12.
	13.
	14.
	15.
	16.
	17.
	18.
	19.
	20.
	21.
	22.
	23.
	24.
	25.
	26.
	27.
	28.
	29.
	30.
	31.
	32.
	33.
	34.
	35.
	36.
	37.
	38.
	39.
	40.
	41.
	42.
	43.
	44.
	45.
	46.
	47.
	48.
	49.
	50.
	51.
	52.
	53.
	54.
	55.
	56.
	57.
	58.
	59.
	60.
	61.
	62.
	63.
	64.
	65.
	66.
	67.
	68.
	69.

	O. Adjourn




